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- We assume from the examples provided that a common thread running through such transactions is a desire by
the acquirer to unwind or “clean up” existing acquiree contractual arrangements with employees or others.
However, if we assume that such contractual arrangements would not normally be wound up at the time of the
acquisition in the absence of the deal, it is not clear to us why they would not be considered to be part of the
acquisition, and, therefore, the exchange transaction. A better understanding of the objective to be achieved

would be helpful in this area.

Finally, we are aware of instances of abuse of such opportunities to “window-dress” the balance sheets of
acquirees just prior to the acquisition. Examples include the unexplained massive write-down or reduction to

zero of major assets or asset categories held by the acquiree, and other suspect major adjustments to the
financial statements. We believe that such adjustments should be made only on fair value measurement bases

and fully-explained as part of the acquisition accounting.

Question 15—Do you agree with the disclosure objectives and the minimum disclosure requirements? If
not, how would you propose amending the objectives or what disclosure requirements would you

propose adding or deleting, and why?

In general, we believe that the proposed disclosures are excellent and will provide very useful information.
However, we have some observations and recommendations for the disclosures.

1. We believe that the goal should be complete transparency for all acquisitions. Hence, all
of the information investors and other users may require so that they can fully understand
the acquisition, its terms and conditions, the total consideration given, and the assets

- acquired, should be disclosed in a clear and accessible format:

e Information provided in conjunction with paragraphs 71-81 should be required to be
presented in a single note, rather than being distributed across the notes and other

disclosures and filings;

e Whenever possible, tabular presentation should bé used rather than to scatter the
disclosures through lengthy prose sections.

These requirements would improve the transparency of the disclosures at little or no cost
to preparers.

2. Unfortunately, and perhaps as a result of historic reporting biases, short shrift has been
given to what could be the most important and relevant information of all, cash flow
information for the acquiree for the reporting period in which the acquisition occurs.
Specifically, the following information should be provided at a minimum:

. Cash flow from operations for the acquiree included in the consolidated cash
flow from operations for the period;

. Capital expenditures for the acquiree for the period;

. Asset sales for the acquiree for the period; and

. Net cash inflow/outflow for financing for the acquiree for the current period.



| |
- | Centre for .
’ Financial
Market

INSTITUTE | Integrity

These disclosures would permit users to understand both the marginal effects of the '
acquiree on the cash flows of the acquirer and post-acquisition transactions that affect

significant balance sheet elements (such as debt).

In order for (condensed) balance sheet information to be useful to investors and .other
users, the information should be presented on a basis consistent with the parent’s balance
sheet. Ideally, the information would be provided in the form of a consolidating balance
sheet. Because the acquirer must have such information available in order to consolidate
the acquiree in the first place, the cost of providing such information to investors would
be trivial. For the same reasons, we believe that a consolidating income statement should
be provided. That would enable users to understand the effect of the acquisition on key
balance sheet elements (such as inventories, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and
debt) and ratios (such as turnover ratios) based on such elements.

Regarding paragraph 76-b, contingent consideration, we have made clear in earlier
questions that:

. We support not only the proposed roll-forward and fair value remeasurement of
the estimated amount for the first annual period following the acquisition, but
that we believe that such remeasurements should be continued until all

commitments and contingencies have been satisfied; also
. The remeasurements and disclosures should be reported on an interim basis.

With regard to the disclosures proposed in paragraph 72, we believe that the cumulative
total amount of consideration transferred (total costs incurred) should be disclosed in
each period. We would also wish to know how much has been expensed in each period.

In paragraph 72-h, the discussion should include a description of the nature of the
contingency.

In paragraph 72-k, we would wish to know the amount of inter-company revenue or
expense previously recorded by one or more of the merger companies. The elimination of
inter-company transactions in consolidation can distort the trends of such key income

statement elements as revenue, expense, and gross margin.

In paragraph 74-b-2, we believe that prior period pro forma comparative financial
statements should be provided for each period covered in the report. Pro forma financial
statements provide a baseline that users can use to separate operating effects on financial

data from acquisition effects.

In paragraph 76-a, managers should provide the information they are awaiting to
complete the measurement. |
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- 10.  In paragraph 76-a-3, we would wish a reconciliation of the amounts and adjustments.

Question 16—Do you believe that an intangible asset that is identifiable can always be measured with
sufficient reliability to be recognised separately from goodwill? If not, why? Do you have any examples
of an intangible asset that arises from legal or contractual rights and has both of “the following

characteristics:

(a) the intangible asset cannot be sold, transferred, licensed, rented, or exchanged
individually or in combination with a related contract, asset, or liability; and

(b) cash flows that the intangible asset generates are inextricably linked with the cash flows
that the business generates as a whole?

We believe that all identifiable intangibles can be reliably measured. Indeed, fair value is so important
(relevant) to financial decision-making that we would accept more subjectivity in these measures in order to
obtain the information. We do not have an example of an intangible asset that would meet both of the

characteristics above.

Question 17—Do you agree that any changes in an acquirer’s deferred tax benefits that become
recognisable because of the business combination are not part of the fair value of the acquiree and
should be accounted for separately from the business combination? If not, why?

— Our reasoning here is essentially the same as that in our response to Question 14. Given that the adjustments
would not have been required absent the acquisition, we believe that the adjustment should be accounted for as
part of the acquisition accounting. Put slightly differently, the change in the acquirer’s deferred tax benefits
was occasioned solely by the acquisition of the acquiree’s operations, including the assets and liabilities.
Hence, it should be accounted for as part of the transaction. Such adjustments do not affect the reporting of
the fair values of other assets, liabilities, and equities involved in the acquisition. However, providing the
adjustments in conjunction with the other acquisition accounting will make it possible for users of the
statements to fully understand the effects of the merger.

Question 18—Do you believe it is appropriate for the IASB and the FASB to retain those disclosure
differences? If not, which of the differences should be eliminated, if any, and how should this be

achieved?

We believe that all such pre-existing differences should be resolved in this standard and would encourage the
two Boards to work to achieve a fully converged standard, including for disclosure differences. Indeed,
because we strongly support the convergence project, and believe that such resulting standards will be highly
beneficial to global financial markets, we hope that this will be the model for future joint standards.

Question 19—Do you find the bold type-plain type style of the Exposure Draft helpful? If not, why? Are
there any paragraphs you believe should be in bold type, but are in plain type, or vice versa?
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There is an increasing tendency among standard-setting organizations, including CFA Institute, to use bold
type for required items (that is, compliance cannot be claimed unless all bold type items are strictly adhered
to), and regular type for optional guidance that is not strictly required. Hence, we believe that the distinctions
between the two in this context are not particularly useful and could be misconstrued, result in inconsistent
application of the standard, and could be harmful. If all of the provisions are intended to be applied fully and
with equal force, then we see no reason to distinguish among the provisions. |

' Respectfully,
/s/Patricia A, McConnell - /s/Rebecca T. McEnally, CFA
Chair, Corporate Disclosure Policy Council Director, Capital Markets Policy Group
CFA Institute Centre for Financial Market CFA Institute Centre for Financial Market
Integrity _ Integrity

Cc:  Jeffrey Diermeier, CFA, Chief Executive Officer, CFA Institute

Raymond DeAngelo, Executive Vice President, Member & Society Division, CFA
Institute . - | -

Kurt Schacht, J.D., CFA, Executive Director, CFA Centre for Financial Market Integrity
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